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Before
DECISION
DECISION
NEIMA,Member:
Member:This
This
caseisisbefore
beforethe
thePublic
PublicEmployment
EmploymentRelations
RelationsBoard
Board(PERB
(PERB
NEIMA,
case
or Board)
Board) on
on exceptions
exceptions filed
by the
the East
East Side
Side Union
School District
District (District)
(District)totothe
the
or
filed by
Union High
High School
proposed decision
TheALJ
ALJfound
foundthat
thatthe
the
proposed
decision (attached)
(attached) of
of an
an administrative
administrative law
law judge
judge (ALJ).
(ALJ). The
Districtviolated
violatedthe
the Educational
Educational Employment
Employment Relations
Relations Act
Act (EERA)'
(EERA) 1by
byunilaterally
unilaterallychanging
changing
District
its policy
policyofofusing
usingaaparticular
particularform
formfor
forthe
thesubmission
submissionofofpublic
publiccomplaints
complaintsagainst
againstemployees,
employees,
its
violationofofEERA
EERAsection
section3543.5(a),
3543.5(a),(b)
(b)and
and(c).2
(c). 2
aa violation

1

EERAisis codified
codifiedatatGovernment
GovernmentCode
Codesection
section3540,
3540, et
et seq.
seq. Unless
Unlessotherwise
otherwisenoted,
noted,
EERA
all
statutory
references
are
to
the
Government
Code.
all statutory references are to the Government Code.
2

EERA section
states, in
part:
PEERA
section 3543.5
3543.5 states,
in pertinent
pertinent part:

It
is unlawful
unlawful for
foraapublic
publicschool
schoolemployer
employertotodo
doany
anyofofthe
the
It is
following:
following:

The Board
Board has
has reviewed
matter, including
including the
the ALJ's
ALJ'sproposed
proposed
The
reviewed the
the entire
entire record
record in
in this
this matter,
decision, the
the District's
District'sexceptions,
exceptions,and
andthe
theresponse
responseofofthe
theEast
EastSide
SideTeachers
Teachers Association,
Association,
decision,
CTA/NEA. The
TheBoard
Boardfinds
findsthe
theALJ's
ALJ' sfindings
findingsofoffact
factand
andconclusions
conclusions of
oflaw
to be
be free
free of
of
CTA/NEA.
law to
prejudicialerror
errorand
andadopts
adopts them
them as
as the
the decision
decision of
of the
the Board
Board itself,
itself, subject
subjectto
to the
the discussion
discussion
prejudicial
below.
below.
DISCUSSION
DISCUSSION
Deferral
to Arbitration
Arbitration
Deferral to
In its
itsexceptions,
exceptions, the
the District
Districtasserts
asserts for
forthe
the first
firsttime
timethat
thatthis
thismatter
mattershould
shouldbe
bedeferred
deferred
In
to
(See EERA
EERA sec.
sec. 3541.5(a).)
3541.S(a).) Significantly,
Significantly,the
theDistrict
Districtfailed
failedtotoraise
raisedeferral
deferralasas
to arbitration.
arbitration. (See
a defense
response to
to the
the charge,
charge, in
answer to
and in
its brief
brief
a
defense in
in its
its initial
initial response
in its
its answer
to the
the complaint,
complaint, and
in its
submitted after
after the
the evidentiary
evidentiary hearing.
hearing. Indeed,
Indeed,ititwas
wasonly
onlyafter
afterthe
theALJ
ALJruled
ruledagainst
againstthe
the
submitted
theproposed
proposed decision
decision that
thatthe
the District
Districtfirst
firstasserted
asserteddeferral.
deferral.AsAssuch,
such,the
theBoard
Boardisis
Districtininthe
District
now confronted
confronted with
withan
anissue
issue that
that has
has lingered
lingered for
for some
some time:
time: whether
whether deferral
deferral to
to arbitration
arbitrationisis
now
StateofofCalifornia
California(Department
(DepartmentofofFood
Foodand
and
stillaajurisdictional
jurisdictionaldefense
defense ininlight
lightofofState
still
Agriculture)(2002)
(2002) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 1473-S
1473-S (Food
(Food &
& Agriculture).
Agriculture).
Agriculture)
(a) Impose
Impose or
or threaten
threaten to
to impose
impose reprisals
reprisals on
on employees,
employees, to
to
(a)
discriminate
or
threaten
to
discriminate
against
employees,
or
discriminate or threaten to discriminate against employees, or
otherwise
to interfere
interfere with,
with,restrain,
restrain,ororcoerce
coerceemployees
employeesbecause
because
otherwise to
of
their
exercise
of
rights
guaranteed
by
this
chapter.
For
of their exercise of rights guaranteed by this chapter. For
of this
this subdivision,
subdivision,"employee"
"employee"includes
includesan
anapplicant
applicant
purposes of
purposes
for
employment
or
reemployment.
for employment or reemployment.
(b) Deny
Deny to
to employee
employee organizations
organizations rights
rightsguaranteed
guaranteed to
to them
them by
by
(b)
this chapter.
chapter.
this
(c) Refuse
Refuse or
fail to
to meet
meet and
and negotiate
negotiate in
good faith
faith with
withan
an
(c)
or fail
in good
exclusive representative.
representative. Knowingly
Knowinglyproviding
providing
exclusive
exclusive
ananexclusive
representative
with
inaccurate
information,
whether
or not
not in
in
representative with inaccurate information, whether or
response
regarding the
the financial
financial
responseto
to aarequest
requestfor
forinformation,
information, regarding
resources
of
the
public
school
employer
constitutes
a
refusal or
or
resources of the public school employer constitutes a refusal
failure
to
meet
and
negotiate
in
good
faith.
failure to meet and negotiate in good faith.
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Prior to
to Food
Food &
&Agriculture,
Agriculture,the
theBoard
Boardhad
hadheld
heldininLake
LakeElsinore
ElsinoreSchool
SchoolDistrict
District
Prior
(1987) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 646
646 (Lake
(LakeElsinore),
Elsinore),that
thatEERA
EERAsection
section3541.5(a)(2)
3541.5(a)(2)established
establishedaa
(1987)
certainrequirements
requirements
jurisdictionalrule
rulerequiring
requiringthat
thata acharge
chargebe
bedismissed
dismissedand
anddeferred
deferred ififcertain
jurisdictional
were met.
met. InInFood
Food&&Agriculture,
Agriculture,the
theBoard
Boardheld
heldthat
thatLake
LakeElsinore
Elsinorewas
waserroneously
erroneouslydecided
decided
were
to the
the extent
extent itit required
required deferral
deferral even
ev,en in
in instances
instances where
where the
towaive
waive
to
the employer
employer was
was not
not willing
willing to
Food &
& Agriculture
Agriculturestated:
stated:
procedural defenses,
defenses, such
procedural
suchas
astimeliness.
timeliness. In
In aa footnote,
footnote, the
the Board
Board in
in Food
At the
the time
time Dry
DryCreek
Creek[Joint
[JointElementary
ElementarySchool
SchoolDistrict
District(1980)
(1980)
At
PERB
Order
No.
Ad-81a]
was
decided,
the
Board
treated
deferral
PERB Order No. Ad-81a] was decided, the Board treated deferral
defense which
which could
couldbe
be waived.
waived.This
Thisissue
issueisis
as an
as
an affirmative
affirmative defense
not
squarely
before
the
Board
and
the
Board
therefore
does
not
not squarely before the Board and the Board therefore does not
ofLake
LakeElsinore
Elsinorewhich
whichdiscusses
discusses the
the
overrule the
the portion
portion of
overrule
of
Section
3
541.
5.
[Fn.
7.]
jurisdictional
nature
jurisdictional nature of Section 3541.5. [Fn. 7.]
Notlong
longafter
afterFood
Food&&Agriculture,
Agriculture,the
theBoard
Boardissued
issuedLong
LongBeach
BeachCommunity
CommunityCollege
College
Not
of
District(2003)
(2003)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.1564
1564(Long
(LongBeach)
Beach) in
inwhich
whichititheld
heldthat
thatthe
thestatute
statute of
District
limitationsunder
under EERA
EERAwas
was not
not jurisdictional,
jurisdictional,but
butrather
ratheran
an affirmative
affirmativedefense.
defense. InInreaching
reaching
limitations
this
holding, the
the Board
Board discussed
discussed the
The Board
Board
this holding,
thepublic
public policy
policy principles
principles governing
governing EERA.
EERA. The
also carefully
carefullyexamined
examinedthe
thelanguage
language of
ofEERA
EERAsection
section3541.5(a)
3541.5(a)and
andprivate
privatesector
sectorprecedent
precedent
also
3
under the
the National
under
National Labor
Labor Relations
RelationsAct
Act (NLRA)
(NLRA). •

Based on
on the
the discussion
discussion and
and analysis
Agricultureand
and Long
LongBeach,
Beach,
Based
analysis contained
contained in
in Food
Food &
& Agriculture
the Board
Board now
now rejects
rejects that
ofLake
Lake Elsinore
Elsinore holding
holdingthat
thatdeferral
deferralto
toarbitration
arbitrationisis
the
that portion
portion of
oflimitations,
limitations,the
theBoard
Boardfinds
findsthat
thatdeferral
deferral under
under
jurisdictional.Instead,
Instead,asaswith
withthe
thestatute
statuteof
jurisdictional.
EERA must
must be
be raised
raised as
as an
defense. Given
Giventhe
the extensive
extensive discussion
discussion of
ofthe
the
EERA
an affirmative
affirmative defense.
ofEERA
section3541.1(a)
3541. l(a) ininLong
LongBeach,
Beach,this
thisholding
holdingshould
shouldnot
notbe
besurprising.
surprising.
language of
language
EERA section
As
the holding
holding in
inLong
LongBeach,
Beach, the
the Board
Board finds
finds that
thatits
itsholding
holdinghere
here regarding
regarding
As with
with the
deferral is
is consistent
consistent with
policy. Specifically,
Specifically,treatment
treatmentofofdeferral
deferralas
as an
an affirmative
affirmative
deferral
with public
public policy.
3

The NLRA
NLRAisiscodified
codifiedatat2929U.S.C.
U.S.C.section
section141,
141,etetseq.
seq.
The
33

defense is
is necessary
necessary to
preserve the
the scarce
scarce resources
PERB and
and the
the parties.
parties. The
Thecase
caseatatbar
bar
defense
to preserve
resources of
of PERB
is aa prime
example. Were
Were the
the Board
Board to
allow the
the District
Districtto
toassert
assert deferral
deferral for
for the
the first
first time
time in
in
is
prime example.
to allow
oftime
time and
and
its exceptions,
exceptions, both
both parties
parties and
and PERB
PERB would
wouldhave
have wasted
wasted an
an enormous
enormous amount
amount of
its
money litigating
litigatingthe
the underlying
underlyingcharge.
charge. Instead,
Instead,by
byrequiring
requiringthe
theDistrict
Districttotoassert
assertdeferral
deferralas
as
money
an affirmative
affirmativedefense
defense such
such waste
waste can
can be
retaining all
all the
the rights
rightsprovided
providedby
by
an
be avoided
avoided while
while retaining
EERA section
section 3541.5(a).
3541.S(a). Accordingly,
Accordingly,the
theBoard
Boardholds
holdsthat
thatdeferral
deferralto
toarbitration
arbitrationunder
under
EERA
EERA section
section 3541.5(a)(2)
3541.5(a)(2)isisnot
notjurisdictional,
jurisdictional,but
butrather
rathermust
mustbebeasserted
asserted as
as an
an affirmative
affirmative
EERA
defense or
As the
the District
Districtfailed
failedtotoraise
raisedeferral
deferralininitsitsanswer,
answer,its
itsdeferral
deferralexception
exceptionisis
defense
or waived.
waived. As
rejected.
rejected.
Remedial
Order
Remedial Order
The
also asserts
asserts in
in its
its exceptions
exceptions that
that the
the ALJ
ALJerred
erredininordering
orderingthat
thatthe
the
The District
District also
disciplinaryactions
actionsagainst
againstemployees
employees D.R.
D.R. and
and L.G.
L.G. be
be rescinded.
rescinded. According
Accordingtotothe
theDistrict,
District,
disciplinary
the ALJ's
orderfails
failstotorecognize
recognizethat
thatdiscipline
disciplinemay
mayhave
havebeen
beenimposed
imposedeven
even had
had the
the required
required
the
ALJ's order
ofthe
the
forms been
been used.
This exception
exception must
must also
also be
be rejected.
rejected. The
The ALJ
ALJfound
foundthat
thatthe
theuse
use of
forms
used. This
public complaint
complaintform
formwas
wasrequired
requiredby
byestablished
establishedpractice,
practice,and
andmoreover,
moreover, provided
provided
public
employees with
important information
informationregarding
regarding the
the complaints
complaints against
employees
with important
against them.
them. The
The District's
District's
failure to
to provide
providethese
these forms
forms to
to D.R.
D.R.and
and L.G.
L.G.requires
requiresrescinding
rescindingthe
thedisciplinary-actions
disciplinary-actions
failure
taken against
order prevents
prevents the
taken
against them.
them. However,
However, nothing
nothing in
in the
the ALJ's
ALJ's order
theDistrict
District from
from re-filing
re-filing
ofthe
the public
publiccomplaint
complaintforms
formshas
hasbeen
beenreinstated.
reinstated.
the disciplinary
disciplinaryactions
actionsonce
onceuse
use of
the
ORDER
ORDER
factand
andconclusions
conclusionsofoflaw,
law,and
andthe
theentire
entirerecord
recordininthis
this
Upon the
the foregoing
foregoing findings
findingsofoffact
Upon
case, itit has
has been
(District)violated
violatedthe
the
case,
been found
found that
that the
the East
EastSide
SideUnion
UnionHigh
High School
School District
District (District)
Educational Employment
Employment Relations
Relations Act
Act(EERA),
(EERA),Government
GovernmentCode
Codesection
section 3543.5(c),
3543.S(c), when
when itit
Educational
4

unilaterally ceased
ceased utilizing
the "Formal
"Formal Public
Public Complaint"
Complaint"form
forminincases
casesinvolving
involvingallegations
allegations
unilaterally
utilizing the
ofsexual
sexual and
and racial
racial harassment/discrimination
harassment/discriminationand
andceased
ceased providing
providingaacopy
copyofofthe
thecomplaint
complainttoto
of
the
member named
Thisconduct
conductalso
also violated
violatedEERA
EERA
the bargaining
bargaining unit
unit member
named in
in the
the public
public complaint.
complaint. This
section 3543.5(a),
3543.S(a), by
by interfering
interfering with
withthe
therights
rightsofofbargaining
bargainingunit
unitmembers
memberstotoparticipate
participateinin
section
employee organizations of their own choosing, and EERA section 3543.S(b), by denying East

employee organizations of their own choosing, and EERA section 3543.5(b), by denying East

Side Teachers
(Association) its
itsright
righttotorepresent
represent employees
employees in
in their
their
Side
Teachers Association,
Association, CTA/NEA
CTA/NEA (Association)
employment relations
relations with
with the
the District.
District.
employment
Pursuant to
section 3541.5(c),
3541.S(c), itit isis hereby
hereby ordered
ordered that
that the
the District,
District,its
itsgoverning
governing
Pursuant
to EERA
EERA section
board and
and its
its representatives
representatives shall:
shall:
board
A.
A.

CEASEAND
ANDDESIST
DESIST FROM:
FROM:
CEASE
1..
1

Unilaterallyceasing
ceasing to
to utilize
utilizethe
the "Formal
"Formal Public
Public Complaint"
Complaint" form
form in
in
Unilaterally

cases involving
allegationsofofsexual
sexualand
andracial
racialharassment/discrimination
harassment/discriminationand
andceasing
ceasingtoto
cases
involving allegations
provide aa copy
copy of
ofthe
the complaint
complainttotothe
thebargaining
bargainingunit
unitmember
membernamed
namedininsuch
suchcases.
cases.
provide
2.
2.

Interferingwith
withbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees'
employees'rights
rightstotoparticipate
participateininthe
the
Interfering

activitiesofofan
anemployee
employee organization
organizationofoftheir
theirown
ownchoosing.
choosing.
activities
3.
3.

Denyingthe
theAssociation
Associationitsitsright
righttotorepresent
representemployees
employees in
in their
their
Denying

employment relations
relations with
with the
the District.
District.
employment
B.
B.

TAKE THE
THE FOLLOWING
FOLLOWING AFFIRMATIVE
AFFIRMATIVEACTIONS
ACTIONSDESIGNED
DESIGNEDTO
TO
TAKE
OF
EERA:
EFFECTUATE
THE
POLICIES
EFFECTUATE THE POLICIES OF EERA:
11..

Uponrequest,
re·quest,meet
meetand
and negotiate
negotiate with
with the
the Association
Association over
over any
any future
future
Upon

decision and
and the
form in
in
decision
the effects
effects thereof
thereof of
of ceasing
ceasingtotoutilize
utilize the
the"Formal
"Formal Public
Public Complaint"
Complaint" form
cases involving
allegations ofofsexual
sexualand
andracial
racialharassment/discrimination
harassment/discriminationand
andceasing
ceasingtoto
cases
involving allegations
the complaint
to the
the bargaining
bargaining unit
unit member
member named
named in
provide
a copy
provide a
copy of
of the
complaint to
in the
the public
public complaint.
complaint.
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2.
2.

Rescind the
the disciplinary
disciplinaryaction
actionimposed
imposedon
onemployees
employeesidentified
identifiedininthese
these
Rescind

proceedings as
as "D.R."
and "L.
"L.G."
G."and
anddestroy
destroyall
alldocumentation
documentationofofthose
those actions;
actions; with
with
proceedings
"D. R." and
respect to
reimburse him
himfor
forlost
lostwages
wagesas
as aa result
result of
ofhis
hissuspension,
suspension, with
withinterest
interest at
at the
the
respect
to D.R.,
D. R., reimburse
legal rate
rate of
ofseven
seven percent
percentper
perannum.
annum.
legal
3.
3.

Postatatall
alllocations
locationswhere
wherenotices
noticestotoemployees
employeesare
are customarily
customarilyposted,
posted,
Post

copies of
of the
the Notice
Notice attached
attached hereto
hereto as
as an
The Notice
Noticemust
mustbe
be signed
signed by
by an
an
copies
an appendix.
appendix. The
authorized
comply with
withthe
the terms
terms of
ofthis
this
authorized agent
agentfor
forthe
theDistrict,
District, indicating
indicating that
that the
theDistrict
District will
will comply
Order. Such
Suchposting
postingshall
shallbe
bemaintained
maintainedfor
foraaperiod
periodofofthirty
thirty(30)
(30)consecutive
consecutivecalendar
calendardays.
days.
Order.
is not
not reduced
reduced ininsize,
size,altered,
altered,defaced
defaced
Reasonable steps
Reasonable
steps shall
shall be
be taken
taken to
to ensure
ensure that
that the
the Notice
Notice is
or covered
covered by
by an
an other
other material.
material.
or
4.
4.

Writtennotification
notificationofofthe
theactions
actions taken
taken to
to comply
comply with
withthis
thisOrder
Order shall
shall
Written

be made
made to
General Counsel
the Public
EmploymentRelations
RelationsBoard,
Board,ororthe
theGeneral
General
be
to the
the General
Counsel of
of the
Public Employment
Counsel's
The District
shall provide
providereports,
reports, in
inwriting,
writing,asasdirected
directedby
bythe
theGeneral
General
Counsel's designee.
designee. The
District shall
Counsel or
reports regarding
regarding compliance
compliance with
withthis
thisOrder
Ordershall
shallbe
be
Counsel
or his/her
his/her designee.
designee. All
All reports
concurrentlyserved
servedon
onthe
the Association.
Association.
concurrently

Chairman
Duncan and
and Member
Whitehead joined
inthis
thisDecision.
Decision.
Chairman Duncan
Member Whitehead
joined in
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APPENDIX
APPENDIX

NOTICETO
TOEMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES
NOTICE
BY ORDER
ORDER OF
OF THE
THE
POSTED BY
POSTED
PUBLIC
EMPLOYMENT
RELATIONS
BOARD
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD
theState
StateofofCalifornia
California
An Agency
Agencyofofthe
An

After aa hearing
hearing in
inUnfair
UnfairPractice
PracticeCase
CaseNo.
No.SF-CE-2298-E,
SF-CE-2298-E,East
EastSide
SideTeachers
Teachers
After
v.
East
Side
Union
High
School
District,
in
which
the
partieshad
had
Association,
CTA/NEA
Association, CTA/NEA v. East Side Union High School District, in which the parties
the
to participate,
participate, itit has
has been
been found
the right
right to
found that
that the
the East
EastSide
SideUnion
Union High
High School
School District
District
(District)
violated
the
Educational
Employment
Relations
Act
(EERA),
Government Code
Code
District) violated the Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA), Government
section 3543.5(c),
3543.S(c), when
ceased utilizing
form in
in
section
when itit unilaterally
unilaterally ceased
utilizing the
the "Formal
"Formal Public
Public Complaint"
Complaint" form
of
sexual
and
racial
harassment/discrimination
and
ceased
cases
involving
allegations
cases involving allegations of sexual and racial harassment/discrimination and ceased
ofthe
the complaint
complainttotothe
thebargaining
bargainingunit
unitmember
membernamed
namedininthe
thepublic
public
providing
copy of
providing aa copy
complaint.
This conduct
conduct also
also violated
violated EERA
EERA section
section 3543.5(a),
3543.S(a), by
by interfering
interfering with
withthe
the rights
rights
complaint. This
of
bargaining
unit
members
to
participate
in
employee
organizations
of
their
own
choosing,
of bargaining unit members to participate in employee organizations of their own choosing,
and EERA
section 3543.5(b),
3543.S(b), by
bydenying
denyingEast
EastSide
Side Teachers
Teachers Association,
Association, CTA/NEA
CTA/NEA
and
EERA section
(Association)
its
right
to
represent
employees
in
their
employment
relations
with the
the District.
District.
(Association) its right to represent employees in their employment relations with
ofthis
this conduct,
conduct, we
we have
have been
been ordered
ordered to
and we
we will:
As aa result
result of
As
to post
post this
this Notice
Notice and
will:
A.
A.

CEASEAND
ANDDESIST
DESISTFROM:
FROM:
CEASE

Unilaterallyceasing
ceasing to
to utilize
utilizethe
the "Formal
"Formal Public
Public Complaint"
Complaint" form
form in
in
11..
Unilaterally
of
sexual
and
racial
harassment/discrimination
and
ceasing
to
cases
involving
allegations
cases involving allegations of sexual and racial harassment/discrimination and ceasing to
ofthe
the complaint
complainttotothe
thebargaining
bargainingunit
unitmember
membernamed
namedininsuch
suchcases.
cases.
provide aa copy
copy of
provide
2.
Interferingwith
withbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees'
employees'rights
rightstotoparticipate
participateininthe
the
2.
Interfering
of
an
employee
organization
of
their
own
choosing.
activities
activities of an employee organization of their own choosing.
3.
Denyingthe
the Association
Associationits
itsright
righttotorepresent
representemployees
employees in
in their
their
3.
Denying
employment
relations
with
the
District.
employment relations with the District.
B.
B.

TAKE THE
THE FOLLOWING
FOLLOWING AFFIRMATIVE
AFFIRMATIVEACTIONS
ACTIONSDESIGNED
DESIGNEDTO
TO
TAKE
OFEERA:
EERA:
EFFECTUATETHE
THEPOLICIES
POLICIESOF
EFFECTUATE
11..

Uponrequest,
request,meet
meetand
and negotiate
negotiate with
withthe
the Association
Associationover
overany
any future
future
Upon
in
decision
decision and
and the
theeffects
effectsthereof
thereofof
ofceasing
ceasingtotoutilize
utilizethe
the"Formal
"FormalPublic
Public Complaint"
Complaint" form
form in
of
sexual
and
racial
harassment/discrimination
and
ceasing
to
cases
involving
allegations
cases involving allegations of sexual and racial harassment/discrimination and ceasing to
provide aa copy
copy of
ofthe
the complaint
complaintto
to the
the bargaining
bargaining unit
unitmember
membernamed
named in
inthe
the public
publiccomplaint.
complaint.
provide

2. Rescind
Rescind
the disciplinary
action
imposed
employees
identified
these
2.
the disciplinary
action
imposed
on on
employees
identified
in in
these
proceedings as
as "D.
R." and
and "L.
"L.G."
G."and
anddestroy
destroyall
alldocumentation
documentationofofthose
thoseactions;
actions;with
with
proceedings
"D. R."
respect
to
D.R.,
reimburse
him
for
lost
wages
as
a
result
of
his
suspension,
with
interest
the
respect to D. R., reimburse him for lost wages as a result of his suspension, with interest atatthe
legal
rate
of
seven
percent
per
annum.
legal rate of seven percent per annum.

Dated: - - - - - - - - Dated:

EAST SIDE
SIDE UNION
UNION HIGH
HIGHSCHOOL
SCHOOL DISTRICT
DISTRICT
EAST

By:
By:

-------------AuthorizedAgent
Agent
Authorized

IS AN
AN OFFICIAL
OFFICIALNOTICE.
NOTICE. ITITMUST
MUSTREMAIN
REMAINPOSTED
POSTEDFOR
FORAT
ATLEAST
LEASTTHIRTY
THIRTY
THIS IS
THIS
(30)
CONSECUTIVE WORKDAYS
WORK.DAYSFROM
FROMTHE
THEDATE
DA TEOF
OFPOSTING
POSTING AND
ANDMUST
MUSTNOT
NOTBE
BE
30) CONSECUTIVE
REDUCED
IN
SIZE,
DEF
ACED,
ALTERED
OR
COVERED
WITH
ANY
OTHER
REDUCED IN SIZE, DEFACED, ALTERED OR COVERED WITH ANY OTHER
MATERIAL.
MATERIAL.
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STATEOF
OFCALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
STATE
PUBLIC
EMPLOYMENT
RELATIONS
BOARD
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS
BOARD
EASTSIDE
SIDETEACHERS
TEACHERSASSOCIATION,
ASSOCIATION,
EAST
CTA/NEA,
CTA/NEA,
Charging Party,
Party,
Charging
VV..

EASTSIDE
SIDEUNION
UNIONHIGH
HIGHSCHOOL
SCHOOLDISTRICT,
DISTRICT,
EAST

UNFAIRPRACTICE
PRACTICE
UNFAIR
CASE
NO.
SF-CE-2298-E
CASE NO. SF-CE-2298-E
PROPOSED DECISION
DECISION
PROPOSED
(7/21/03)
(7/21/03)

Res ondent.
Respondent.
Appearances: California
CaliforniaTeachers
TeachersAssociation,
Association,by
byRamon
RamonE.
E. Romero,
Romero, Staff
StaffAttorney,
Attorney,for
forEast
East
Appearances:
Side
Teachers
Association,
CTA/NEA;
Doug
Emerson,
Director
of
Employer/Employee
Side Teachers Association, CTA/NEA; Doug Emerson, Director of Employer/Employee
Relations, for
for East
East Side
Side Union
Union High
HighSchool
SchoolDistrict.
District.
Relations,
Before Donn
Donn Ginoza,
Ginoza, Administrative
AdministrativeLaw
LawJudge.
Judge.
Before
PROCEDURALHISTORY
HISTORY
PROCEDURAL
East Side
Side Teachers
East
TeachersAssociation,
Association,CTA/NEA
CTA/NEA (Association)
(Association) initiated
initiated this
this action
action by
by filing
filing
anunfair
unfairpractice
practicecharge
charge against
against the
(District)on
on
an
the East
East Side
SideUnion
Union High
High School
School District
District (District)
October 31,
31, 2002.
2002. Following
Followingitsitsinvestigation
investigationofof
thecharge,
charge,the
thegeneral
generalcounsel
counselof
ofthe
thePublic
Public
October
the
EmploymentRelations
RelationsBoard
Board(PERB
(PERBororBoard)
Board)issued
issuedaacomplaint
complainton
onNovember
November20,
20,2002.
2002.
Employment
ofusing
using aa particular
particular form
form
The complaint
complaint alleges
alleges that
that the
unilaterallychanged
changed a
a policy
The
the District
District unilaterally
policy of
ofpublic
public complaints
complaintsagainst
against employees
employees by
new form
form for
for
for the
the submission
submission of
for
by substituting
substituting aa new
publiccomplaints
complaints involving
involvingharassment/discrimination.
harassment/discrimination. This
Thisconduct
conductisisalleged
alleged to
to violate
violate
public
Educational Employment
Employment Relations
Relations Act
Act (EERA
(EERAor
orAct)
Act)section
section3543.5(a),
3543.5(a), (b)
(b) and
and (c).'
(c). 1
Educational

1
Unlessotherwise
otherwiseindicated
indicatedallallstatutory
statutoryreferences
referencesare
are to
to the
the Government
Government Code.
Code. The
The
Unless
EERA
is
codified
at
section
3540
et
seq.
In
relevant
part,
section
3543.5
provides
as
follows:
EERA is codified at section 3540 et seq. In relevant part, section 3543.5 provides as follows:

shall be
be unlawful
unlawfulfor
foraapublic
publicschool
schoolemployer
employer to
to do
do any
any of
ofthe
the
ItIt shall
following:
following:

The District
Districtanswered
answered the
the complaint
complainton
onDecember
December 11,
11, 2002,
2002, denying
denying all
allmaterial
material
The
allegations.
allegations.
The parties
parties participated
participatedininan
aninformal
informalsettlement
settlementconference
conferenceon
onJanuary
January16,
16,2003,
2003,but
but
The
the
was not
not resolved.
resolved.
the matter
matter was
2
Withthe
the
The undersigned
undersigned conducted
The
conductedaaformal
formalhearing
hearingininOakland
Oaklandon
onApril,
April, 11,
11, 2003.
2003. With

receiptofofpost-hearing
post-hearingbriefs
briefson
onJune
June16,
16,2003,
2003,the
thematter
matterwas
was submitted
submittedfor
fordecision.
decision.
receipt
FINDINGSOF
OF FACT
FACT
FINDINGS
section3540.1(k)
3540.1 (k)ofofthe
the
The District
Districtisisaapublic
publicschool
schoolemployer
employerwithin
withinthe
themeaning
meaningofofsection
The
section3540.1(d)
3540.l(d)and
and
Act. The
TheAssociation
Associationisisan
anemployee
employeeorganization
organizationwithin
withinthe
themeaning
meaningofofsection
Act.
an exclusive
exclusive representative
representative within
the meaning
meaning of
ofsection
section 3540.1(e).
3540.l(e). There
Thereare
areapproximately
approximately
an
within the
1,200 employees
employees in
the bargaining
bargaining unit.
unit.
1,200
in the
The parties
parties have
have had
had aa collective
bargainingagreement
agreement in
in effect
effectatatall
alltimes
timesrelevant
relevanttoto
The
collective bargaining
this dispute.
dispute. Article
Article2828ofof
theagreement,
agreement,entitled
entitled"Public
"PublicComplaint,"
Complaint,"sets
setsforth
fortha aprocedure
proceduretoto
this
the

(a) Impose
Imposeororthreaten
threatentotoimpose
imposereprisals
reprisalson
onemployees,
employees,toto
(a)
discriminate
or
threaten
to
discriminate
against
employees, or
or
discriminate or threaten to discriminate against employees,
otherwise
to
interfere
with,
restrain,
or
coerce
employees
because
otherwise to interfere with, restrain, or coerce employees because
oftheir
theirexercise
exercise of
ofrights
rightsguaranteed
guaranteed by
by this
this chapter.
chapter. For
For
of
purposes
of
this
subdivision,
"employee"
includes
an
applicant
purposes of this subdivision, "employee" includes an applicant
for employment
employment or
orreemployment.
reemployment.
for
(b) Deny
Denytotoemployee
employeeorganizations
organizationsrights
rightsguaranteed
guaranteedtotothem
themby
by
(b)

thischapter.
chapter.
this

(c) Refuse
Refuseor
orfail
failtotomeet
meetand
andnegotiate
negotiate in
in good
good faith
faith with
withan
an
(c)
exclusiverepresentative.
representative.
exclusive
2

commencementofof
theformal
formal
hearing,the
theAssociation
Association
assertedthat
thatitithad
hadnot
not
AtAt
thethe
commencement
the
hearing,
asserted
been served
served aa copy
copy of
ofthe
the answer
answer and
and that
that the
the allegations
allegations of
ofthe
the complaint
complaintshould
shouldtherefore
thereforebe
be
been
deemed
admitted.
This
motion
was
denied.
The
Association
also
moved
to
amend
the
deemed admitted. This motion was denied. The Association also moved to amend the
complaint to
to delete
delete the
the allegation
allegation that
that the
the form
formfor
forpublic
publiccomplaints
complaintswas
wasproduced
producedasasa aresult
result
complaint
of
negotiations
and
to
add
the
allegation
that
it
first
discovered
the
change
in
practice
in
May
of negotiations and to add the allegation that it first discovered the change in practice in May
2002 (rather
(rather than
than the
the practice
practice necessarily
necessarily changing
changing on
on that
that date).
date). Both
Boththe
themotions
motionstotoamend
amend
2002
the
complaint
were
granted.
the complaint were granted.
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be followed
before the
the District
Districtimposes
imposesany
anydisciplinary
disciplinaryaction
actionororissues
issuesany
anynegative
negativeand/or
and/or
be
followed before
informationreceived
received through
through aa complaint
complaintfrom
fromaa
unsatisfactory evaluation
evaluation as
as aa result
unsatisfactory
result of
of information
the public
or an
an employee
employee of
the District.
Thefirst
firststep
steprequires
requiresthat
thatthe
thebargaining
bargaining
member of
member
of the
public or
of the
District. The
ofthe
the existence
existence and
the period
unit member
member be
be "advised
"advised of
unit
and substance
substanceof
ofthe
thecomplaint"
complaint" within
within the
period of
of
time specified.
specified. Thereafter,
Thereafter,either
eitherparty
party(the
(theemployee
employee or
or administrator
administratoracting
actingon
onthe
the
time
complaint)has
has the
the right
righttotoschedule
scheduleaa meeting
meeting to
to discuss
discuss the
the complaint,
complaint, at
at which
whichthe
the employee
employee
complaint)
may be
be represented
represented by
addition,the
theaccused
accusedhas
has the
the right
righttotorespond
respondtotothe
the
may
by the
the Association.
Association. InInaddition,
thecomplaint.
complaint.
complaint orally
orally or
or in
in writing
writingafter
afternotification
notificationofofthe
complaint
28 provides:
provides:
Section 28.1.4
Section
28.1.4 of
of Article
Article 28
Complaints
which are
are withdrawn
withdrawn or
or shown
shown to
to be
be false
false shall
shall
Complaints which
neither
be
placed
in
the
unit
member's
personnel
file
nor
utilized
neither be placed in the unit member's personnel file nor utilized
in any
any evaluation
evaluation or
or disciplinary
disciplinaryaction
actionagainst
against the
the unit
unit member.
member.
in
of
the
Should
the
administrator
determine
that
the
substance
Should the administrator determine that the substance of the
complaint is
is true,
true, following
followingthis
thisprocedure,
procedure, ititmay
maybe
be placed
placed in
in
complaint
the
unit
member's
personnel
file.
Any
complaint
which
is
neither
the unit member's personnel file. Any complaint which is neither
determined
be put
put in
in aa "complaint
"complaint
determined to
to be
be true
true or
or [sic]
[sic] false
false will
will be
file"
for
a
period
of
three
years.
Such
a
complaint
willbe
be
file" for a period of three years. Such a complaint will
ofthe
the complaint,
complaint,unless
unless
discarded after
three years
years from
the date
date of
discarded
after three
from the
a
similar
complaint
regarding
the
same
unit
member
is
filed;
a similar complaint regarding the same unit member is filed; in
in
thenew
new
that case,
case, the
complaint will
willbecome
becomepart
partofofthe
that
the first
first complaint
complaint file
file and
and will
willbe
bedealt
dealt with
withconsistent
consistent with
with this
this
complaint
procedure
as
a
part
of
the
second
complaint.
procedure as a part of the second complaint.
he/she
Section 28.1.4
28.1.4 also
also requires
requires that
that the
the administrator
administrator prepare
prepare aa written
reportififhe/she
Section
written report
determines the
or "neither
"neither true
true nor
nor false."
false." The
Thereport
reportisistoto
determines
the complaint
complaint is
is either
either "true"
"true" or
summarize all
informationconsidered
considered as
as well
well as
as the
the reasoning
reasoning for
the administrator's
administrator's finding.
finding.
summarize
all information
for the
The
has discretion
whether to
to issue
issue any
the complaint
complaint isis found
found to
tobe
be
The administrator
administrator has
discretion whether
any report
report if
if the
ofappeal
appeal of
ofthe
the administrator's
administrator's finding
finding to
to the
the
false. Further,
Further, Article
Article28
28 provides
provides for
for aa right
right of
false.
District'sgoverning
governingboard.
board.
District's
Beginning in
in 1980
1980 and
and continuing
continuing through
through 2002,
2002, Bill
BillMustanich
Mustanichhas
hasserved
served the
the
Beginning
Associationas
as either
eitheraa grievance
grievance representative,
representative, representing
representing employees
employees at
at aa particular
particularschool
school
Association
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site, or
or as
as aa grievance
grievance chair
(or co-chair),
co-chair), representing
representing employees
employees district-wide.
Overthis
this
site,
chair (or
district-wide. Over
period of
oftime,
time,he
hehas
has been
been called
called upon
upon for
forrepresentation
representation in
inan
an average
average of
ofbetween
between two
two and
and ten
ten
period
allcases
cases in
in
times per
per year,
involvingpublic
publiccomplaints
complaintsagainst
against unit
unitmembers.
members. InInall
times
year, district-wide,
district-wide, involving
whichMustanich
Mustanichwas
wasinvolved,
involved,the
theprincipal
principalwas
wasthe
the"administrator"
"administrator"who
whopresided
presidedover
overthe
the
which
complaintprocess.
process. Warren
WarrenSmith
Smithserved
servedas
asthe
the grievance
grievance chair
chairand
and co-chair
co-chairbeginning
beginninginin1985
1985
complaint
untilhis
hisretirement
retirement inin2002.
2002. He,
He,too,
too,personally
personallydealt
dealtwith
withapproximately
approximatelytwo
twotototen
tenpublic
public
until
In1997,
1997,aa third
thirdco-chair
co-chairwas
wasadded,
added, and
and the
the position
was filled
filled by
byLarry
Larry
complaints each
each year.
year. In
complaints
position was

Scharsch. Scharsch
Scharsch provided
provided representation
representation in
in public
publiccomplaints
complaintscases
cases as
as well.
well.
Scharsch.
ofthe
the
The Association
Associationwitnesses
witnesses testified
testifiedthat
thatinincases
caseswhere
whereaaparent,
parent, student,
student, member
memberof
The
oremployee
employee wishes
wishes to
to file
fileaacomplaint
complaintagainst
againstaabargaining
bargainingunit
unitmember,
member,the
theDistrict
District
public, or
public,
utilizesaa form
form entitled
entitled"Formal
"FormalPublic
PublicComplaint
ComplaintAgainst
AgainstaaDistrict
DistrictEmployee"
Employee"for
forprocessing
processing
utilizes
complaints against
against unit
members. The
The form
contains blanks
information: (1)
(1)
complaints
unit members.
form contains
blanks for
for the
the following
following information:
date, (2)
(2) identity
identityof
ofprincipal/immediate
principal/immediatesupervisor
supervisorwith
withwhom
whomthe
thecomplaint
complaintisislodged,
lodged,
date,
(4) identity
identityofofthe
theperson
personagainst
against
(3)
(3) name,
name, address
address and
andtelephone
telephonenumber
numberof
of the
the complainant,
complainant, (4)
thenature
nature of
ofthe
thecomplaint,
complaint,and
and(6)
(6)aa
whom the
the complaint
complaint is
is being
being filed,
filed,(5)
(5)aadescription
descriptionofofthe
whom
signature line
for the
the complainant,
complainant, immediately
immediately following
followingaastatement
statementcertifying
certifyingthat
thatthe
the
signature
line for
informationprovided
providedisistrue
trueand
andaccurate
accurate to
to the
the best
best of
knowledge. The
The
information
of the
the complainant's
complainant's knowledge.
form isis inintriplicate;
triplicate;the
theoriginal
originalgoes
goestotothe
theadministrator,
administrator,one
onecopy
copytotothe
theperson
personagainst
against
form
whomthe
thecomplaint
complaintisislodged,
lodged,and
andanother
anothertotothe
thecomplainant.
complainant.
whom
sustained complaint
complaintisisappealed
appealed to
to the
the governing
governing board,
board, the
the administrator's
administrator'sdecision
decision
IfIfaasustained
upheld, and
and the
the complaint
complaint form
form entered
entered in
in the
the employee's
employee's personnel
personnel file,
the Association
Association
upheld,
file, the
ofjust
just cause
cause under
the
usually files
files aa grievance,
grievance, claiming
claiming lack
lack of
usually
underArticle
Article 27
27 ("Discipline")
("Discipline") ofofthe
agreement. Once,
Once, aa principal
principalrejected
rejectedthe
thecomplaint,
complaint,but
butthe
thecomplainant's
complainant'sparent
parentpersuaded
persuaded
agreement.
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the governing
governingboard
board to
to have
have the
the complaint
complaint placed
placed in
in the
the employee's
employee's personnel
personnel file.
file. The
The
the
theArticle
Article2828procedure.
procedure.
Associationprevailed
prevailedininaagrievance
grievance claiming
claimingaaviolation
violationofofthe
Association
Althoughthe
thepublic
publiccomplaint
complaintform
formdid
didnot
notresult
resultfrom
fromnegotiations
negotiationsbetween
betweenthe
the
Although
ofthe
theform's
form'suse
use
parties,the
theAssociation
Associationnever
neverobjected
objected to
to its
its use.
use. The
TheAssociation
Associationapproved
approvedof
parties,
because it
served as
details of
ofthe
the complaint
complaint from
fromthe
thecomplainant
complainantand
and
because
it served
as aatool
tool for
for eliciting
eliciting details
requiredthat
thatthe
the complainant
complainantsign
signthe
the form
formwith
withan
anacknowledgement
acknowledgementof
ofthe
thecertification.
certification.
required
documentedon
onaapaper
paperother
otherthan
than the
the form.
form. But
But
Earlyon,
on,aapublic
publiccomplaint
complaintwas
waslikely
likelytotobebedocumented
Early
withinthe
thepast
past"five
"fivetotoseven"
seven"years,
years,Mustanich
Mustanichhas
hasseen
seen the
the public
publiccomplaint
complaintform
formused
used
within
"quite regularly."
regularly."During
Duringthis
thisperiod
periodofof
time,Mustanich
Mustanichhas
hasmade
madeitithis
hisregular
regularpractice
practice to
to
"quite
time,
request aa copy
copy of
ofthe
the form,
form,and
andthe
the District
Districthas
hasalways
alwayscomplied.
complied.
request
There was
was no
evidence that
has an
an explicit
ruleor
orguidance
guidance regarding
regarding
There
no direct
direct evidence
that the
the District
District has
explicit rule
when ititrequires
requires aa complainant
complainant to
to complete
complete the
the formal
formal complaint
complaint form.
form.Association
Associationwitnesses
witnesses
when
admittedthat
thatininsome
somecases
cases only
only aa verbal
verbal complaint
complaintisismade
made against
against the
the unit
unit member.
member. InInthese
these
admitted
cases however,
actionhas
has ever
ever resulted.
resulted. The
The complaint
complaintwas
waseither
eitherdropped
droppedor
or
cases
however, no
no disciplinary
disciplinary action
informallyresolved
resolved(e.g.,
(e.g.,the
theemployee
employeemight
mightagree
agreetotoundergo
undergocounseling).
counseling).
informally
When aa complainant
complainant has
has come
written complaint
complaintbut
butititwas
wasnot
notprepared
prepared
When
come forward
forward with
with aa written
onthe
thepublic
publiccomplaint
complaintform,
form,the
theDistrict
Districtadministrator
administratorhas
hasattached
attached the
the writing
writingtotothe
thepublic
public
on
complaintform
formand
andprovided
providedboth
bothdocuments
documentstotothe
theAssociation.
Association.The
Thecomplainant's
complainant'ssignature
signature
complaint
willappear
appearon
onthe
the public
publiccomplaint
complaintform.
form.Scharsch
Scharschtestified
testifiedthat
thatthe
theAssociation
Associationinterprets
interprets
will
Article28
28as
asrequiring
requiringnotification
notification
the
charges,and
andthat
thatwhenever
wheneverthe
thecomplainant
complainanthas
has
Article
ofof
the
charges,
reduced his
his or
or her
her complaint
complainttotowriting,
writing,the
thedocuments
documentsmust
mustbe
beproduced.
produced.
reduced
IX
In2000,
2000, approximately,
approximately, Mustanich
Mustanich became
became aware
In
awareof
of aaform
form entitled
entitled "Title
"Title IX
Harassment/Discrimination Complaint."
Complaint."AADistrict
District
attorneyproduced
producedit itforforthe
theAssociation
Association
Harassment/Discrimination
attorney
sexualharassment
harassmentagainst
againstan
an
when aa unit
unitmember
memberexpressed
expressed aa desire
desire to
to file
fileaa complaint
complaintofofsexual
when
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administrator.During
Duringthe
thesame
sameperiod
periodininwhich
whichthe
thepublic
publiccomplaint
complaint
form
hasbeen
beenininuse,
use,the
the
administrator.
form
has
Associationhas
has been
been aware
allegations of
of
Association
aware of
of at
at least
least ten
tenof
of the
thepublic
public complaints
complaints involving
involving allegations
sexualharassment
harassment against
against unit
members. Mustanich
Mustanichrepresented
represented employees
employees in
all of
of
sexual
unit members.
in most
most or
or all
these cases.
Smith has
has also
also represented
represented employees
sexual harassment.
Neither
these
cases. Smith
employees charged
chargedwith
with sexual
harassment. Neither
Mustanich nor
nor Smith
Smithever
ever witnessed
witnessed the
the Title
Title IX
IXform
formbeing
beingutilized
utilizedininsuch
suchcases
casesinvolving
involvinga a
Mustanich
unitmember.
member.
unit
Scharsch represented
represented two
unit members
members against
against whom
whom complaints
complaintshad
hadbeen
beenlodged
lodgedinin
Scharsch
two unit
May2002.
2002. InInboth
bothcases,
cases,Scharsch
Scharschrequested
requestedaa copy
copyof
ofthe
thecomplaint
complaintand
andinineach
eachcase
casehe
hewas
was
May
by Doug
Doug Emerson,
Emerson, the
director of
ofemployer/employee
employer/employee relations.
relations. Emerson
Emerson
denied it
denied
it by
the District's
District's director
advised Scharsch
Scharsch that
that copies
copies would
would not
not be
be provided
provided because
because the
IX
advised
the cases
casesinvolved
involved Title
Title IX
·harassment/discrimination.
harassment/discrimination. Emerson
Emersonconfirmed
confirmedatat the
the hearing
hearing that
that copies
copies of
the Title
IX
of the
Title IX
of
complaintsare
arenot
notprovided
providedtotothe
theemployee
employee or
orthe
the Association,
Association, citing
citingreasons
reasons of
complaints
confidentiality.
confidentiality.
The first
first of
ofthese
these two
two cases
cases involved
involved aa teacher
teacher (identified
here as
as "D.
"D.R."),
andthe
the
The
(identified here
R."), and
ofhis
his investigation
investigation
complaintinvolved
involvedracial
racialdiscrimination.
discrimination.Emerson
Emersonannounced
announcedas
asaa result
result of
complaint
that the
the employee
employee would
receive discipline
discipline ininthe
theform
formofofaanine-day
nine-daysuspension
suspensionwithout
withoutpay.
pay.
that
would receive
Inthe
thesecond
second case
case involving
involvingsexual
sexualharassment,
harassment, Emerson
Emersonindicated
indicatedthat
thatthe
theemployee
employee
In
"L. G.")
G.")would
wouldbe
bedisciplined
disciplinedby
byhaving
havingaaletter
letterplaced
placed in
in his
his personnel
personnel file.
In
(identified as
as "L.
(identified
file. In

bothcases,
cases, Emerson
Emerson communicated
communicated the
the substance
substance of
of the
the complaint
complainttotoScharsch
Scharschverbally.
verbally.
both
ofthe
thecomplainant,
complainant,
However,ininthe
thesecond
secondcase,
case, Emerson
Emersonrefused
refused to
to reveal
revealthe
thename
name of
However,
disclosingonly
onlythat
thatthe
theperson
personwas
wasaa classified
classifiedemployee.
employee. InInboth
bothcases,
cases,Emerson
Emersontestified,
testified,the
the
disclosing
employees admitted
admittedthe
thesubstance
substanceofofthe
thecomplaints.
complaints.
employees
According to
to Emerson,
Emerson, the
produced the
complaint form
form in
in 1994.
1994. ItIt
According
the District
District produced
the Title
Title IX
IX complaint
was developed
developed to
to ensure
ensure compliance
rights law.
law. Emerson
Emersonbelieved
believed the
the
was
compliancewith
with federal
federal civil
civil rights
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Associationprovided
providedinput
inputas
as to
to the
the development
development of
ofthe
the form,
form, but
buthe
he provided
providedno
no specifics.
specifics. AA
Association
copy of
ofthe
the Title
TitleIXIXform
formappeared
appearedinina a1998-1999
1998-1999District
Districtparent/student
parent/studenthandbook.
handbook.
copy
the
However, there
there was
was no
no affirmative
affirmativeevidence
evidencethat
thatthe
the Association
Associationwas
was provided
providedaacopy
copyofofthe
However,
handbookor
orthat
that an
an officer
officerwith
withappropriate
appropriatenegotiating
negotiatingauthority
authorityviewed
viewedthe
thecontents
contents of
ofthe
the
handbook
handbook.
handbook.
InSeptember
September 2000,
2000, the
the Title
TitleIXIXform
formwas
wasused
usedinina acomplaint
complaint
againstthe
thesame
sameD.D.R.
In
against
R.
3

identifiedabove
above where
where the
the claim
claimwas
was sexual
sexual harassment."
harassment. Although
AlthoughSmith
Smithwas
wasaware
awareof
ofthe
the
identified
case and
and believes
believes he
he referred
the employee
employee directly
directlytotolegal
legalcounsel
counselfor
forrepresentation
representationbecause
because
case
referred the
wasaaserious
seriouscase,
case, he
he denied
denied seeing
seeing any
anydocumentation
documentationininthe
thecase.
case.
ititwas
Under the
the District's
District'spractice,
practice, every
every Title
Title IX
IXcomplaint
complainttriggers
triggers an
an investigation.
investigation. After
After
Under
the investigation
investigationisiscompleted
completedthe
theform
formmay
maybe
beretained
retainedininthe
theinvestigative
investigativefile
fileorordestroyed.
destroyed.
the
disciplineresults
resultsfrom
fromsuch
suchaa sexual
sexual or
or racial
racial harassment/discrimination
harassment/discrimination complaint,
complaint, the
the
Even ififdiscipline
Even
Title IX
IXcomplaint
complaintform
formisisnot
notplaced
placedininthe
theemployee's
employee'spersonnel
personnel file.
file.Emerson
Emersonagreed
agreed that
that
Title
regardless of
of whether
whether the
the complaint
complaint involves
involvessexual
sexual or
orracial
racialharassment/discrimination,
harassment/discrimination,
regardless
Article28
28prescribes
prescribes the
the procedure
procedure for
for the
the investigation
investigation of
ofall
allcomplaints.
complaints.
Article
According to
to Emerson,
Emerson, the
the District
Districtinterprets
interprets Article
Article28
28as
asrequiring
requiringproduction
productionofofa a
According
ofthe
the complaint
complaint only
onlyififititseeks
seekstotoenter
enter aa public
public complaint
complaintform
formininthe
theemployee's
employee's
copy of
copy
personnel file.
file. This
Thisrule
ruledoes
doesnot
notprevent
prevent the
the District
Districtfrom
fromutilizing
utilizinganother
anotherform
formso
solong
longas
as itit
personnel
Emersontestified
testifiedthat
thatthe
theDistrict
Districtcontinues
continuestotouse
useand
and
does not
does
not seek
seek to
to enter
enteritit in
in the
the file.
file. Emerson
produce the
the public
public complaint
complaintform
formfor
forcases
cases not
not involving
involvingsexual
sexualororracial
racial
produce
harassment/discrimination.
harassment/discrimination.

3
A copy
that
complaint
indicates
that
theform
formwas
waslast
lastrevised
revisedininMarch
March1995.
1995.
A copy
of of
that
complaint
indicates
that
the
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ISSUE
ISSUE
Didthe
theDistrict
Districtunilaterally
unilaterallychange
changeits
itspolicy
policyregarding
regardingthe
theprocessing
processingof
ofpublic
public
Did
complaints?
complaints?
CONCLUSIONS OF
OF LAW
LAW
CONCLUSIONS
publicschool
schoolemployer
employerisisrequired
requiredtotomeet
meetand
andnegotiate
negotiate in
ingood
goodfaith
faithwith
withthe
the
AApublic
exclusiverepresentative
representative of
ofaa bargaining
bargaining unit
unitofofits
itsemployees
employeesconcerning
concerningmatters
matterswithin
withinthe
the
exclusive
scope of
of representation.
representation. (Sec.
(Sec. 3540.1(h);
3540.l(h); 3543.5(c).)
3543.5(c).) An
Anemployer's
employer'sunilateral
unilateral
scope
implementationofofa achange
changeas
astotoaanegotiable
negotiablesubject,
subject,absent
absentaa valid
validdefense,
defense,constitutes
constitutesaaper
per
implementation
dutytotomeet
meetand
and negotiate
negotiate in
in good
good faith.
faith. (Pajaro
(Pajaro Valley
ValleyUnified
UnifiedSchool
School
seviolation
violationofofitsitsduty
se
District(1978)
(1978)PERB
PERB Decision
DecisionNo.
No. 51.)
51.) No
Nofinding
findingofof
over-allsubjective
subjectivebad
badfaith
faithisisrequired
required
District
over-all
because such
such conduct,
conduct, just
just like
likeaaflat
flatrefusal,
refusal,necessarily
necessarilyobstructs
obstructsbargaining
bargainingand
andfrustrates
frustratesthe
the
because
objectivesof
ofthe
theAct.
Act.(California
(California
StateEmployees'
Employees'Assn.
Assn.v.v.Public
PublicEmployment
Employment
RelationsBd.
Bd.
objectives
State
Relations
(1996) 51
51 Cal.App.4
Cal.App.4th923,
923,934-935,
934-935,citing
citingNLRB
NLRBv.v.Katz
Katz(1962)
(1962)369
369U.S.
U.S.736
736[50
[50LRRM
LRRM
(1996)
2177].)
2177].)
The elements
elements of
ofaa unilateral
unilateralchange
change violation
violationare:
are:(1)
( 1)the
theemployer
employerbreached
breachedororaltered
altered
The
the parties'
parties'written
writtenagreement
agreementororitsitsown
ownestablished
establishedpast
pastpractice;
practice;(2)
(2)such
suchaction
actionwas
wastaken
taken
the
withoutgiving
givingthe
theexclusive
exclusiverepresentative
representativenotice
noticeor
oran
an opportunity
opportunitytotobargain
bargainover
overthe
the
without
change; (3) the change is not merely an isolated departure from the policy, but amounts to a

change; (3) the change is not merely an isolated departure from the policy, but amounts to a

change of policy, i.e., the change has a generalized effect or continuing impact on bargaining

change of policy, i.e., the change has a generalized effect or continuing impact on bargaining

unitmembers'
members'terms
termsand
andconditions
conditionsofofemployment;
employment;and
and(4)
(4)the
thechange
changeininpolicy
policyconcerns
concernsaa
unit
matter within the scope ofrepresentation. (Grant Joint Union High School District (1982)
matter within the scope of representation. (Grant Joint Union High School District (1982)
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.196.)
196.)
PERB
The Association
Associationcontends
contends that
that all
allofofthe
therequired
requiredelements
elementsfor
foraaunilateral
unilateralchange
changecase
case
The
complaint
have been
been met:
the District
Districthad
had established
established aa past
have
met: (1)
(1) the
past practice
practice of
of using
using the
the public
public complaint
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form in
invirtually
virtuallyallallsituations
situationswhere
wherea acomplaint
complaintarose
aroseagainst
againstan
anemployee;
employee; (2)
(2) ititreversed
reversed its
its
form
opportunitytotobargain
bargain
policywhen
when ititbegan
began using
using the
IX form,
form, without
withoutprior
priornotice
noticeororopportunity
policy
the Title
Title IX
havingbeen
beenprovided;
provided;(3)
(3)the
thechange
changehad
had aa generalized
generalized effect
effect or
or continuing
continuingimpact
impacton
on
having
bargainingunit
unitmembers;
members;and
and(4)
(4)the
thematter
matterisisa anegotiable
negotiablesubject
subjectbecause
becausethe
thepublic
public
bargaining
complaintprocess
process described
described in
in the
the contract
contract is
is a
a procedure
ofdiscipline,
discipline, and
and
complaint
procedure for
for the
the imposition
imposition of
disciplineofofthe
thetype
typeimposed
imposedhere
here(i.e.,
(i.e.,suspensions
suspensionswithout
withoutpay
payand
anddocumentation
documentationininthe
the
discipline
personnel file)
file)isiswithin
withinEERA's
EERA'sscope
scopeofofrepresentation
representation definition.
definition.
personnel
The District
Districtcontends
contendsthat
thatthere
therecan
can be
be no
no violation
violationbecause
because the
the form
formwas
wasnot
not
The
negotiated and
and because
because the
failedto
toestablish
establishaaconsistent
consistentpractice
practiceregarding
regardingits
its
negotiated
the Association
Association failed
use. To
Tothe
theextent
extentthe
the contract
contractaddresses
addresses the
ofdiscipline
disciplineas
as aa result
result of
ofpublic
public
use.
the imposition
imposition of
complaints, the
the District
Districtargues
argues that
that ititcomplied
compliedwith
withthe
theterms
terms of
ofArticle
Article28
28with
withrespect
respecttoto
complaints,
D.R.
and L.G.
L.G. InInaddition,
addition,the
theDistrict
District
contendsthat
thatthe
theform
formis isnot
nota amatter
matterwithin
within
scope
D.
R. and
contends
thethe
scope
ofrepresentation.
representation.
of
Inthis
thiscase,
case, the
the Association
Association predicates
predicates its
its case
case on
the District's
"own
In
on an
an alteration
alteration of
of the
District's "own
established past
PERBhas
has stated
stated that
that aa binding
binding past
past practice
practice isis one
one that
that isis "regular
"regular
established
past practice."
practice." PERB
and consistent"
and accepted."
accepted." (Pajaro
(Pajaro Valley
ValleyUnified
UnifiedSchool
SchoolDistrict,
District,
supra,
and
consistent" or
or "historic
"historic and
supra,
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 51.)
51.) InInTemple
TempleCity
CityUnified
UnifiedSchool
SchoolDistrict
District
(1989)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.
PERB
(1989)
782, PERB
PERB held
held that
that the
the exclusive
exclusive representative
representative had
had acquiesced
individual
782,
acquiesced in
in aa policy
policy of
of individual
"buyout"
out"employees
employeesininorder
ordertotoobtain
obtaintheir
theirearly
earlyretirement.
retirement.The
Theevidence
evidence
negotiations to
to "buy
negotiations
demonstrated aa total
12 buy-outs
a 17-year
17-year period.
The union
unionbecame
became involved
involvedininthe
the
demonstrated
total of
of 12
buy-outs over
over a
period. The
thecases
casesafter
afterthey
theywere
wereinitiated
initiatedby
bythe
theemployer
employerand
andhad
hadknowledge
knowledge
negotiationsininfive
fiveofofthe
negotiations
ofthe
the practice
practice for
formore
morethan
than four
fouryears.
years. PERB
PERBconcluded
concludedthat
thatthe
thepractice
practice itself
itselfhad
hadexisted
existed
of
foratatleast
leastsix
sixyears
years before
before the
the union
union filed
filedits
itscharge.
charge.
for
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findthat
thatthe
the District
Districthad
hadaa "historic
"historicand
and accepted
accepted practice"
utilizingthe
the formal
formal
II find
practice" of
of utilizing
public complaint
complaintform
forminincases
cases of
ofpublic
publiccomplaints
complaints(i.e.,
(i.e.,those
thoselodged
lodgedagainst
againstaaunit
unitmember
member
public
ofthe
the public)
public)and
andthat
thatwhen
whensuch
suchaapublic
public
byaa student,
student, parent,
parent, employee,
employee, or
or other
other member
member of
by
of
complaint
form was
was completed
completed the
administrator provided
providedthe
the employee
employee with
withaa copy
copy of
complaint form
the District
District administrator
it. Mustanich
Mustanichcompetently
competentlytestified
testifiedthat
thatuse
useofofthe
theform
formhad
hadbecome
become "quite
"quiteregular"
regular"during
duringthe
the
it.
the administrator
administratorhas
has
past five
fivetotoseven
sevenyears
years and
and that
that whenever
wheneverhe
he has
has requested
requested a
a copy
past
copy of
of ititthe
obliged.
obliged.
The fact
complaint form
form was
was not
not negotiated
negotiated is
The Association
Association
The
fact the
the public
public complaint
is irrelevant.
irrelevant. The
use and
argumentthat
thatthe
the failure
failure
was aware
was
aware of
of its
its use
and acquiesced
acquiescedininits
itsuse.
use. II reject
reject the
the District's
District's argument
of the
the Association
Association to
to negotiate
negotiate the
the complaint
prevents it
from claiming
claimingaapast
past practice
practice on
on
of
complaint prevents
it from
which to
to base
base its
its case
case of
is well-settled
well-settledthat
that unwritten
unwrittenpast
pastpractices
practices may
may
which
of unilateral
unilateral change.
change. ItIt is
change. (See
(See Pajaro
Unified School
School District,
District,supra,
supra,
support aa charge
charge of
support
of unilateral
unilateral change.
Pajaro Valley
Valley Unified
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 51.)
51.)
PERB
further find
findthat
thatthis
thispractice
practiceapplied
appliedto
to cases
cases involving
sexual or
or racial
racial
II further
involving sexual
harassment/discriminationcomplaints.
complaints.Mustanich
Mustanichand
andSmith
Smithrecalled
recalledatatleast
leastten
tencases
casesof
ofthis
this
harassment/discrimination
the District
was regularly
the public
publiccomplaint
complaintform,
form,
kind
during the
the period
kind during
period of
of time
time the
District was
regularly utilizing
utilizing the
and neither
during this
this time.
time. Mustanich
Mustanichwas
wasalways
always
and
neither representative
representativeever
eversaw
sawthe
theTitle
TitleIX
IX form
form during
ofaapublic
publiccomplaint
complaintform
formupon
upon
requestwhen
whenheherepresented
representedan
anemployee.
employee.
providedaa copy
copyof
provided
request
cases implies
That he
he made
made no
no exception
exception as
as to
That
to any
any particular
particular type
type of
of cases
implies that
that District
District
administrators provided
with aa copy
copy of
of the
the public
public complaint
complaint form
formininthe
the
administrators
provided him
him with
harassment/discriminationcases
cases as
as well.
well.
harassment/discrimination
The District
Districtclaimed
claimedthat
thatthe
theTitle
TitleIXIXform
formwas
wasused
usedinstead
insteadininthese
thesecases
cases prior
to 2002
2002
The
prior to
as early
to carry
carry its
itsburden
burdenthat
thatitithad
had
(presumably
(presumably as
early as
as 1994,
1994, when
when itit was
was developed)
developed) but
but failed
failed to
established such
such aa contrary
Althoughthe
theDistrict
Districtsuggested
suggestedthat
thatthe
thepolicy
policyhad
had
established
contrary practice.
practice. Although
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always been
been to
use the
IX form
formfor
forharassment/discrimination
harassment/discriminationcases
cases by
by making
making an
an offer
offer of
of
always
to use
the Title
Title IX
proofat
at the
the outset
outset of
ofthe
the hearing
hearing that
that the
the Association
Association was
was aware
aware of
ofthis
this form
formprior
priortotoitsitsuse
useinin
proof
appeared that
that the
the District
Districtintended
intendedtotoestablish
establish
these cases,
cases, no
these
no such
such proof
proof was
was ever
ever adduced.
adduced. ItItappeared
thatSmith
Smithwas
was aware
aware of
ofthe
the use
use of
of the
the Title
Title IX
IXform
formininthe
theprevious
previouscase
caseagainst
against D.
D.R.
that
R.
occurring in
in2000.
2000. However,
However,Smith
Smithcredibly
crediblytestified
testifiedthat
thathehesaw
sawno
nodocumentation
documentationininthat
that
occurring
case. Emerson
Emerson admitted
admitted that
that Article
Article28
28applies
appliestotoall
allcases
cases of
ofpublic
publiccomplaints
complaintswhether
whetherorornot
not
case.
they involve
involveharassment/discrimination.
harassment/discrimination.
they
Article28
28also
alsosupports
supports aa finding
finding that
that District
Districtadministrators
administratorshad
hadaa
The language
language of
The
of Article
the form.
(Pajaro Valley
ValleyUnified
UnifiedSchool
SchoolDistrict,
District,
"regular and
and consistent"
consistent" practice
"regular
practice of
of utilizing
utilizing the
form. (Pajaro
(6 thCir.
Cir.1977)
1977)
supra, PERB
inter alia,
alia, NLRB
v. Allied
AlliedProducts
Products Corp.
Corp. (6"
supra,
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 51,
51, citing,
citing, inter
NLRB v.
548 F.2d
F.2d 644
2433], modifying
modifying (1975)
(1975) 218
218 NLRB
NLRB 1246
1246 [89
[89 LRRM
LRRM1441].)
1441].)The
The
548
644 [94
[94 LRRM
LRRM 2433],
formwas
wasone
oneprepared
prepared by
by the
the District
and distributed
distributed to
to all
all schools.
schools. ItItisisentitled
entitled"Formal
"Formal
form
District and
Public Complaint
Complaint Against
Against District
DistrictEmployee";
Employee"; the
the title
titleof
ofArticle
Article28
28isis"Public
"PublicComplaint."
Complaint."
Public
The correspondence
correspondence of
the language
language is
hence it
can be
be inferred
that administrators
administrators were
were
The
of the
is direct;
direct; hence
it can
inferred that
notifiedininsome
somemanner
mannerby
bythe
theDistrict
Districtasastotothe
theform's
form'sintended
intendeduse
usewhen
whenit itwas
wasdistributed.
distributed.
notified
Moreover, the
the wording
wording of
ofsection
section 28.1.4
28.1.4 implies
implies that
that the
the public
public complaints
complaints are
are typically
typically
Moreover,
committedtotowriting,
writing,since
sinceit itspeaks
speaksofofthe
thecomplaint
complaintbeing
beingretained
retainedand
andplaced
placedininthe
the
committed
personnel and
and investigative
verbalcomplaint
complaintcannot
cannot be
be "placed"
"placed" in
inaa file
fileunless
unless itit isis
personnel
investigative files.
files. AAverbal
first reduced
reduced to
to writing.
writing. Any
Anyadministrator
administratorreading
readingArticle
Article2828would
wouldnaturally
naturally
assumethe
thebest
best
first
assume
practice for
forcomplying
complyingwith
withthe
theprocedure
procedurewould
wouldbe
betotohave
havethe
thecomplainant
complainantcomplete
completethe
the
practice
form. Thus,
Thus,the
theevidence
evidencethat
thatan
anadministrator
administratoroccasionally
occasionallyacted
actedupon
uponaacomplaint
complaintdespite
despitethe
the
form.
fact that
that ititwas
wasonly
onlyverbal
verbaldoes
doesnot
notprevent
preventaafinding
findingofofthe
theexistence
existenceofofaa"regular
"regularand
and
fact
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consistent" practice
practice of
ofcompleting
completingthe
the form."
form. 4Even
Evenassuming
assumingthe
theadministrator's
administrator'scapacity
capacityfor
for
consistent"
discretion in
in directing
directing the
the complainant
complainant to
to complete
complete the
the public
public complaint
complaintform,
form,the
theevidence
evidence
discretion
was provided
providedtotothe
theAssociation
Association
clearly establishes
establishes that
whenever the
the form
form was
was completed
completed itit was
clearly
that whenever
upon
The Association
Associationpredicates
predicates its
its case
case both
both on
on the
the fact
fact that
that the
the District
Districthad
hadaa
upon request.
request. The
practice of
ofrequiring
requiringthe
thepublic
publiccomplaint
complaintform
formand
andproviding
providingit itwhenever
wheneverdocumentation
documentationwas
was
practice
available.
available.
Next, IIfind
findthat
thatthe
theAssociation
Associationhas
has established
established that
altered its
when
Next,
that the
the District
District altered
its policy
policy when
began using
using the
the Title
IXform
formininharassment/discrimination
harassment/discriminationcases
cases without
withouthaving
havingprovided
provided
itit began
Title IX
the Association
notice of
of the
the change
change in
have found
found that
thatthe
the District
Districtused
used the
the
the
Association prior
prior notice
in policy.
policy. IIhave
public complaint
complaintform
formininall
allcases
cases prior
priorto
toMay
May2002.
2002.InInthe
thecases
casesof
ofD.
R.and
andL.
L.G.,
G.,the
the
public
D. R.
ofthe
the public
public complaint
complaint form.
form. Because
Because the
the District
District utilized
utilizedthe
the Title
TitleIX
IXform
forminstead
instead of
District
District
suggests that
May 2002,
2002, itit naturally
naturallymakes
makesno
no claim
claimthat
thatitit
suggests
that no
no change
changein
in policy
policy occurred
occurred in
in May
provided notice
notice of
ofaa change
change in
policy. To
Tothe
theextent
extentititmay
maybe
bearguing
arguingthat
thatnotice
noticeofofthe
the
provided
in policy.
change was
was imputed
imputed to
to the
the Association
Associationbased
based on
on the
the representation
representation provided
provided to
to D.
D.R.
the
change
R. ininthe
in aa waiver
waiver by
by inaction
inactionof
ofthe
theright
righttotobargain,
bargain,I Ireject
rejectthis
thisclaim
claimbased
basedon
on
earlier case,
case, resulting
earlier
resulting in
myfinding
findingabove
above of
ofno
no notice.
notice. (See
(See Victor
VictorValley
ValleyUnion
UnionHigh
HighSchool
SchoolDistrict
District(1986)
(1986)PERB
PERB
my
Decision
No. 565.)
565.)
Decision No.
policyhas
hasaageneralized
generalizedeffect
effectand
and continuing
continuingimpact
impact
furtherfind
findthat
thatthe
thechange
changeininpolicy
IIfurther
on the
the terms
terms and
and conditions
ofemployment
employment for
forbargaining
bargainingunit
unitmembers.
members.Emerson
Emersonasserted
asserted
on
conditions of
IXform
formwas
wasthe
theproper
properprocedure
procedure for
forcases
cases involving
involving
that
that use
use of
of the
the Title
Title IX
Emerson'sposition
positionasasdirector
directorofofemployer/employee
employer/employee
harassment/discrimination complaints.
complaints. Emerson's
harassment/discrimination
4
The Association
Association witnesses'
witnesses' testimony
testimony that
that no
no verbal
verbal complaint
complaint ever
ever resulted
resulted in
in formal
formal
" The
ofany
anykind
kindcould
couldbe
beread
readas
assuggesting
suggesting that
that verbal
verbal complaints
complaintswere
wereintended
intendedby
bythe
the
discipline
discipline of
be
informal
but
that
the
District
would
nevertheless
become
involved.
While
the
victim
to
victim to be informal but that the District would nevertheless become involved. While the
couldnot
not force
force an
an employee
employee to
to fill
fillout
outaaform,
form,an
an administrator
administratormight
mightor
ormight
mightnot
not
District could
District
on
completion
of
the
form.
have
conditioned
his/her
involvement
in
the
matter
have conditioned his/her involvement in the matter on completion of the form.
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relations places
places him
him in
in the
the responsible
responsible authority
authority position
position to
to establish
establish District
Districtpolicy.
policy.
relations
Therefore, the
the evidence
evidence demonstrates
thispractice
practiceininthe
the
Therefore,
demonstratesthat
thatthe
theDistrict
District intends
intends to
to follow
follow this
future and
and that
that its
its conduct
conduct in
inthese
these two
two cases
cases is
prior policy.
policy.
future
is not
not aa mere
mere isolated
isolated deviation
deviation from
from prior
Lastly,I Ifind
findthat
thatthe
thematter
matterof
ofthe
the utilization
utilizationofofaaform
formfor
fordocumenting
documentingpublic
public
Lastly,
complaintsisisaa matter
matter within
withinthe
thescope
scope of
ofrepresentation.
representation. AAsubject
subject is
is negotiable
negotiable ififititisis
complaints
specificallyenumerated
enumerated in
in the
the Act's
Act'sscope
scope of
ofrepresentation
(Sec.3543.2.)
3543.2.)
specifically
representation definition.
definition. (Sec.
Section3543.2(b)
3543.2(b)identifies
identifies"causes
"causes and
and procedures
procedures for
disciplinaryaction,
action,other
otherthan
than
Section
for disciplinary
ofpay
pay for
for up
up to
to15
15 days,
days, affecting
affectingcertificated
certificatedemployees."
employees."
dismissal, including
includingaasuspension
suspension of
dismissal,
The public
public complaint
complaint procedure
procedure whereby
whereby formal
formal complaints
complaints involving
involving
The
harassment/discrimination were
were documented
documented in
complaint form
form and
and provided
provided to
to the
the
harassment/discrimination
in the
the public
public complaint
Association must
must be
be considered
considered aa procedure
procedure for
for disciplinary
disciplinaryaction,
action,because
becauseEmerson
Emersonadmitted
admitted
Association
that the
the public
public complaint
complaintprocedure
procedureapplied
appliedtotothe
thecases
cases of
ofD.
R.and
andL.L.G.
G.and
andbecause
because his
his
that
D. R.
investigationininboth
bothcases
cases resulted
resulted in
the imposition
ofdiscipline
discipline short
short of
ofdismissal.
dismissal. (See
(See
investigation
in the
imposition of
ArvinUnion
UnionSchool
SchoolDistrict
District(1983)
(1983)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.300.)
300.)Also,
Also,because
becauseArticle
Article28
28
Arvin
provides that
that the
the public
public complaint
complaintform
formmay
maybe
be placed
placed in
in the
the employee's
employee's personnel
personnel file,
file, ititisisaa
provides
procedure for
for the
the evaluation
evaluationofofcertificated
certificatedemployees,
employees,another
anotherenumerated
enumeratedsubject
subjectunder
under
procedure
section 3543.2(a).
3543.2(a). (Compton
(ComptonCommunity
CommunityCollege
CollegeDistrict
District(1990)
(1990)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.798.)
798.)
section
The fact
fact that
that the
the District
claims its
its policy
policyisis never
never to
to include
include the
the Title
Title IX
IXform
formdoes
does not
not affect
affect
The
District claims
G.case
case in
in
this conclusion.
conclusion. Emerson
Emerson included
included his
his own
own letter
lettersummarizing
summarizing his
his findings
findingsininthe
theL.L.G.
this
the employee's
employee's personnel
personnel file.
file. Also
Alsosection
section28.1.4,
28.1.4,by
byitsitsexpress
expressterms,
terms, applies
applies when
when aa public
public
the
complaintwill
willbe
beused
usedto
toimpose
impose discipline
disciplineor
orwill
willresult
resultinina anegative
negativeevaluation
evaluationpursuant
pursuant to
to
complaint
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Article28."
28. 5As
AsI have
I havefound,
found,the
thepublic
publiccomplaint
complaintform
form
appearstotohave
havebeen
beendeveloped
developedby
bythe
the
Article
appears
thecontract.
contract.
Districtto
to assist
assist administrators
administrators in
in fulfilling
fulfillingthese
theseprovisions
provisionsofofthe
District
Accordingly,I Iconclude
concludethat
thatthe
the District
Districtunilaterally
unilaterallychanged
changedits
itspolicy
policyregarding
regardingthe
the
Accordingly,
process of
violation of
ofEERA
section3543.5(c).
3543.S(c). This
Thisconduct
conductalso
alsodenied
denied
process
of public
public complaints
complaints in
in violation
EERA section
D.R.
andL.L.G.,
G.,inin
the Association
Association its
its right
righttotorepresent
represent bargaining
bargaining unit
unitmembers,
members, specifically
specificallyD.
the
R. and
violationof
ofEERA
EERAsection
section3543.5(b).
3543.S(b). ItItfurther
furtherinterfered
interferedwith
withthe
therights
rightsofof
thesebargaining
bargaining
violation
these
in the
the activities
activitiesof
ofan
anemployee
employee organization
organization of
oftheir
theirown
own
unit members
members to
to participate
participate in
unit
choosing, ininviolation
violationofofEERA
EERAsection
section3543.5(a).
3543.S(a).
choosing,
REMEDY
REMEDY
Section 3541.5(c)
3541.S(c) grants
grants PERB
PERB
Section
the
the power
power to
to issue
issue aa decision
decision and
andorder
orderdirecting
directing an
an offending
offending
party
to
cease
and
desist
from
the
unfair
practice
and
totake
take such
such
party to cease and desist from the unfair practice and to
affirmative
action, including
includingbut
butnot
notlimited
limitedtotothe
thereinstatement
reinstatement
affirmative action,
of
employees
with
or
without
back
pay,
as
will
effectuate
the
of employees with or without back pay, as will effectuate the
thischapter.
chapter.
policiesofofthis
policies
Inthis
thiscase
case itit has
has been
been determined
violatedits
itsobligation
obligationtotonegotiate
negotiateinin
In
determined that
that the
the District
District violated
good faith
faithby
byunilaterally
unilaterallyceasing
ceasingtotouse
use the
the public
publiccomplaint
complaintform
forminincases
casesofofsexual
sexualand
and racial
racial
good
harassment/discriminationand
andceasing
ceasing to
to provide
provideaa copy
copyof
ofthe
thecomplaint
complainttotothe
thebargaining
bargaining
harassment/discrimination
unit member
member named
named in
such cases,
The District
willbe
be
unit
in such
cases,ininviolation
violation of
of section
section 3543.S(c).
3543.5(c). The
District will
ordered to
to return
return to
to the
the status
status quo
quo ante
ante which
which existed
existed prior
priortotothe
theimplementation
implementationofof
thechange
change
ordered
the
inpolicy.
policy.InInthe
theevent
eventthe
theDistrict
Districtchooses
choosestotocease
cease using
using the
the form
form in
in the
the future,
future, ititmust
must give
give
in
the Association
Associationreasonable
reasonable notice
notice and
and an
an opportunity
opportunity to
to negotiate
negotiate about
about that
that decision.
decision.
the

5
The
corevalues
valuesembodied
embodiedininthe
thepublic
publiccomplaint
complaintform
formvis-a-vis
vis-a-visthe
theunit
unitmember
memberare
are
The
core
due
process
(i.e.,
notice)
and
the
right
of
confrontation
(i.e.,
identity
of
the
complainant
and
the
due process (i.e., notice) and the right of confrontation (i.e., identity of the complainant and the
certificationrequirement
requirement that
that bears
bears on
on credibility).
credibility).(See
(SeeCal.
Cal.Const.,
Const.,arts.
arts.77and
and15;
15;U.
U.S.
certification
S.
th
th
Const.,
6
and
14
Amds.)
Const., 6" and 14" Amds.)
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In addition,
addition,ititisisappropriate
appropriatetotoorder
orderthat
thatthe
thedisciplinary
disciplinaryaction
actionimposed
imposedon
onD.D.R.
and
In
R. and
L. G.
G. be
be rescinded
rescinded and
and all
all documentation
documentation of
ofthose
those actions
actions be
be destroyed.
destroyed. Since
SinceD.
D.R.
lostwages
wages
L.
R. lost

as aa result
ofhis
his suspension,
suspension, the
shouldalso
also be
be required
required to
toreimburse
reimbursehim
himfor
forthese
theselost
lost
as
result of
the District
District should
7 percent
This affirmative
affirmativeaction
actionisis
wages, with
interest at
at the
the legal
legal rate
rate of
wages,
with interest
of 7
percent per
per annum.
annum. This
necessary to
imposes aa duty
duty on
on the
the public
public school
school
necessary
to effectuate
effectuate the
the purposes
purposesof
of the
the Act,
Act, which
which imposes
employer to
to meet
meet and
and negotiate
negotiate in
in good
good faith
faith and
and refrain
refrain from
from taking
takingunilateral
unilateralaction
actionon
on
employer
matters within
the scope
scope of
of representation.
representation. The
The concern
concern is
is less
less with
withthe
the veracity
veracityofofthe
the
matters
within the
complainant'scharges
charges against
against the
claims the
the employees
employees admitted
admitted the
the
complainant's
the employees
employees (the
(the District
District claims
allegations) than
than with
the denial
denial of
ofthe
the Association's
Association'sability
abilitytotorepresent
representthe
theemployees
employeesininaa
allegations)
with the
meaningful way.
way. InInL.L.G.'s
G.'scase,
case,Emerson
Emersonrefused
refused even
even to
to inform
informScharsch
Scharsch of
of the
the identity
identity of
of
meaningful
the complainant.
complainant.
the
also appropriate
appropriate that
that the
the District
Districtbe
be required
required to
to post
post aa notice
notice incorporating
incorporating the
the
ItItisisalso
terms of
order. The
The Notice
Noticeshould
shouldbe
be signed
signed by
by an
an authorized
authorized agent
agent of
the District
terms
of this
this order.
of the
District
indicating that
that itit will
willcomply
complywith
withthe
theterms
termsthereof.
thereof.The
TheNotice
Noticeshall
shallnot
notbe
bereduced
reducedininsize.
size.
indicating
Posting of
such notice
provideemployees
employees with
withnotice
noticethat
thatthe
theDistrict
Districthas
hasacted
acted in
inan
an
Posting
of such
notice will
will provide
unlawfulmanner
mannerand
andisisbeing
being required
required to
to cease
cease and
and will
willcomply
comply
unlawful
and desist
desist from
from this
this activity
activity and
with the
the order.
order. ItIteffectuates
effectuatesthe
thepurposes
purposes of
ofthe
theEERA
EERAthat
thatemployees
employeesbe
beinformed
informedofofthe
the
with
resolution of
ofthe
the controversy
controversyand
and the
the District's
District'sreadiness
readiness to
to comply
complywith
withthe
theordered
orderedremedy.
remedy.
resolution
(Davis Unified
UnifiedSchool
School District
District(1980)
(1980)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.116;
116;see
see also
also Placerville
Placerville Union
Union
(Davis
School District
(1978) PERB
PERB Decision
DecisionNo.
No.69.)
69.)
School
District (1978)
PROPOSED ORDER
ORDER
PROPOSED
Upon the
the foregoing
foregoing findings
findingsofoffact
factand
andconclusions
conclusionsofoflaw,
law,and
andthe
theentire
entirerecord
recordininthe
the
Upon
case, and
and pursuant
is hereby
hereby ordered
ordered that
that the
the East
East Side
Side Union
Union High
High
case,
pursuant to
to section
section 3541.S(b),
3541.5(b), itit is
School District
Districtand
andits
itsrepresentatives
representatives shall:
shall:
School
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A.
A.

CEASEAND
ANDDESIST
DESISTFROM:
FROM:
CEASE
1.
1.

Failingand
andrefusing
refusingtotomeet
meetand
andnegotiate
negotiate in
ingood
goodfaith
faithwith
withthe
theEast
East
Failing

Side Teachers
Teachers Association,
Association, CTA/NEA
CTA/NEAas
as the
the exclusive
exclusive representative
representative of
ofits
its certificated
certificated
Side
unilaterallyceasing
ceasing to
to use
use the
the "Formal
"Formal Public
PublicComplaint"
Complaint"form
formin in
cases
employees by
employees
by unilaterally
cases
involvingallegations
allegationsofofsexual
sexualand
andracial
racialharassment/discrimination
harassment/discriminationand
andceasing
ceasing to
to provide
provide aa
involving
copyof
ofthe
thecomplaint
complainttotothe
thebargaining
bargainingunit
unitmember
membernamed
namedininsuch
suchcases.
cases.
copy
2.
2.

Bythe
thesame
same conduct,
conduct, interfering
interfering with
withbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees'
employees' right
right
By

to participate
participate in
in the
the activities
activities of
ofan
anemployee
employee organization
organization of
oftheir
theirchoosing.
choosing.
to
3.
3.

Bythe
thesame
same conduct,
conduct, denying
denying to
to the
the East
East Side
Side Teachers
Teachers Association,
Association,
By

CTA/NEArights
rightsguaranteed
guaranteed by
bythe
the Educational
Educational Employment
Employment Relations
Relations Act,
Act, including
includingthe
the
CTA/NEA
righttotorepresent
representits
itsmembers.
members.
right

B.
B.

TAKE THE
THE FOLLOWING
FOLLOWING AFFIRMATIVE
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION:
ACTION:
TAKE
11..

Uponrequest,
request,meet
meetand
andnegotiate
negotiatewith
withthe
theEast
EastSide
SideTeachers
Teachers
Upon

Association, CTA/NEA
CTA/NEAover
overany
anyfuture
futuredecision
decisionand
andthe
theeffects
effectsthereof
thereofofof
ceasinguse
useofofthe
the
Association,
ceasing
"Formal
Public Complaint"
Complaint"form.
form.
"Formal Public
2.
2.

Withinthirty
thirty(30)
(30)workdays
workdaysofofservice
serviceofofaafinal
finaldecision
decisionininthis
thismatter,
matter,
Within

rescind the
the disciplinary
disciplinaryaction
action imposed
imposed on
on D.
D.R.
and L.
L. G.
G. and
and destroy
destroy all
all documentation
documentation of
of
rescind
R. and
those actions;
with respect
respect to
to D.
D.R.,
reimburse him
himfor
forlost
lostwages
wagesas
asaaresult
resultofofhis
hissuspension,
suspension,
those
actions; with
R., reimburse
withinterest
interestatatthe
thelegal
legalrate
rateof
of77percent
percentper
perannum.
annum.
with
3.
3.

Withinseven
seven (7)
(7) workdays
workdays of
ofservice
service of
ofaa final
finaldecision
decisionininthis
thismatter,
matter,
Within

the Notice
post at
at all
all locations
locations where
where notices
notices to
to employees
employees are
are customarily
posted, copies
post
customarily posted,
copies of
of the
Notice
byan
anauthorized
authorizedagent
agentfor
forthe
the
attached hereto
hereto as
as an
TheNotice
Noticemust
mustbe
besigned
signedby
attached
an appendix.
appendix. The
District, indicating
indicating that
that the
the District
Districtwill
willcomply
complywith
withthe
theterms
termsofofthis
thisOrder.
Order.Such
Suchposting
posting
District,
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shall be
be maintained
maintained for
for aa period
period of
ofthirty
thirty(30)
(30)consecutive
consecutivecalendar
calendardays.
days. Reasonable
Reasonablesteps
steps
shall
to ensure
ensure that
that the
the Notice
Noticeisisnot
notreduced
reducedininsize,
size,altered,
altered,defaced
defacedororcovered
coveredby
byan
an
shall be
be taken
taken to
shall
othermaterial.
material.
other
4.
4.

'

Withinthirty
thirty(30)
(30)workdays
workdaysofofservice
serviceofofaafinal
finaldecision
decisionininthis
thismatter,
matter,
Within

ofthe
the Public
Public Employment
Employment Relations
Relations Board,
Board, in
in
notifythe
theSan
San Francisco
Francisco Regional
Regional Director
Director of
notify
writing,ofofthe
thesteps
steps the
the employer
employer has
has taken
the terms
Order. Continue
Continue
writing,
taken to
to comply
comply with
with the
terms of
of this
this Order.
to report
report in
in writing
writingtotothe
theRegional
RegionalDirector
Directorperiodically
periodicallythereafter
thereafteras
as directed.
directed. All
Allreports
reportstoto
to
the Regional
Regional Director
Directorshall
shallbe
beserved
served concurrently
concurrentlyon
onthe
the Charging
ChargingParty.
Party.
the
Pursuant to
Regulation 32305,
32305, this
this Proposed
Proposed Decision
Decisionand
and Order
Ordershall
shallbecome
become
Pursuant
to PERB
PERB Regulation
final unless
unless aa party
files aa statement
statement of
within20
20days
days of
of
final
party files
of exceptions
exceptions with
with the
the PERB
PERB itself
itself within
service of
ofthis
this Decision.
Decision.The
TheBoard's
Board'saddress
addressis:
is:
service
Public Employment
EmploymentRelations
RelationsBoard
Board
Public
Attention:
Appeals
Assistant
Attention: Appeals Assistant
1031 18th
18thStreet
Street
1031
Sacramento,
CA
95814-4174
Sacramento, CA 95814-4174
FAX:(916)
(916)327-7960
327-7960
FAX:
withPERB
PERBregulations,
regulations,the
thestatement
statement of
Inaccordance
accordance with
ofexceptions
exceptions should
shouldidentify
identifyby
by
In
page citation
citation or
or exhibit
exhibitnumber
numberthe
the portions
portions of
ofthe
the record,
record, ififany,
any,relied
reliedupon
uponfor
forsuch
such
page
exceptions. (PERB
(PERBRegulation
Regulation32300.)
32300.)
exceptions.
business
A document
document is
is considered
considered "filed"
"filed"when
whenactually
actuallyreceived
receivedbefore
beforethe
theclose
closeofofbusiness
A
(5 p.m.)
p.m.) on
on the
the last
last day
day set
set for
filingororwhen
whenmailed
mailedby
bycertified
certifiedororExpress
ExpressUnited
UnitedStates
Statesmail,
mail,
(5
for filing
as shown
as
shown on
on the
the postal
postal receipt
receipt or
or postmark,
postmark, or
or delivered
delivered to
to aa common
common carrier
carrier promising
promising
overnight
delivery,as
as shown
shown on
on the
the carrier's
carrier's receipt,
receipt, not
notlater
laterthan
thanthe
thelast
lastday
dayset
setfor
forfiling.
filing.
overnight delivery,
(PERBRegulations
Regulations32135(a)
32135(a)and
and32130.)
32130.)
(PERB
A document
document is
is also
also considered
considered "filed"
"filed"when
whenreceived
receivedby
byfacsimile
facsimiletransmission
transmissionbefore
before
A
business on
together with
withaaFacsimile
FacsimileTransmission
TransmissionCover
Cover
the close
close of
the
of business
on the
the last
last day
day for
for filing
filing together
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Sheet which
which meets
meets the
the requirements
the filing
party
Sheet
requirements of
of PERB
PERB Regulation
Regulation 32135(d),
32135(d), provided
provided the
filing party
also places
places the
the original,
original, together
together with
withthe
therequired
requirednumber
numberofofcopies
copiesand
andproof
proofofofservice,
service,inin
also
the U.S.
U.S. mail.
mail. (PERB
(PERBRegulation
Regulation32135(b),
32135(b),(c)(c)and
and(d);
(d);see
seealso
alsoPERB
PERBRegulations
Regulations32090
32090and
and
the
32130.)
32130.)
Anystatement
statement of
ofexceptions
exceptions and
and supporting
supporting brief
briefmust
mustbe
be served
served concurrently
concurrentlywith
withitsits
Any
filingupon
uponeach
eachparty
partyto
to this
thisproceeding.
proceeding. Proof
Proofofofservice
serviceshall
shallaccompany
accompanyeach
eachcopy
copyserved
served
filing
on aa party
party or
or filed
filedwith
withthe
theBoard
Boarditself.
itself.(See
(SeePERB
PERBRegulations
Regulations32300,
32300,32305,
32305,32140,
32140,and
and
on
32135(c).)
32135(c).)

Donn Ginoza
AdministrativeLaw
LawJudge
Judge
Administrative
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PROOF OF
OF SERVICE
SERVICEBY
BYMAIL
MAIL
PROOF
C.C.P.
1013a
C.C.P. 1013a
declare that
that II am
am aa resident
resident of
Sacramento, California.
IIdeclare
of or
or employed
employed in
in the
the County
County of
of Sacramento,
California. II
am over
over the
the age
age of
18 years
years and
and not
to the
the within
withinentitled
entitledcause.
cause.The
Thename
nameand
andaddress
address
am
of 18
not aa party
party to
of
my
residence
or
business
is
Public
Employment
Relations
Board,
1031
18th
Street,
of my residence or business is Public Employment Relations Board, 1031 18th Street,
Sacramento,
ani readily
familiarwith
withthe
theordinary
ordinarypractice
practiceofofthe
thebusiness
business
Sacramento,CA
CA 95814-4174.
95814-4174. II am
readily familiar
of
collecting, processing
processing and
and depositing
depositingcorrespondence
correspondence in
inthe
theUnited
UnitedStates
StatesPostal
PostalService
Serviceand
and
of collecting,
that
the
correspondence
will
be
deposited
the
same
day
with
postage
thereon
fully
prepaid.
that the correspondence will be deposited the same day with postage thereon fully prepaid.
On November
November 23,
23, 2004,
2004, II served
served the
the attached
attached PERB
Decision No.
No. 1713,
1713, East
East Side
Side
On
PERB Decision
Union High
HighSchool
SchoolDistrict,
District,Case
CaseNo.
No. SF-CE-2298-E
SF-CE-2298-Eon
onthe
the parties
parties listed
listed below
belowby
byplacing
placingaa
Union
true
copy
thereof
enclosed
in
a
sealed
envelope
for
collection
and
mailing
in
the
United
States
true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing in the United States
Postal
ordinarybusiness
businesspractices
practicesatatSacramento,
Sacramento, California
Californiaaddressed
addressed as
as
Postal Service
Service following
following ordinary
follows:
follows:

of Employer/Employee
Employer/Employee
Doug Emerson,
Emerson, Director
Doug
Director of
Relations
Relations
East
School District
District
East Side
Side Union
Union High
High School
830 N.
N. Capitol
Capitol Avenue
Avenue
830
CA
95133
San
Jose,
San Jose, CA 95133
Darren C.
C. Kameya,
Kameya, Attorney
Darren
Attorney
E.
Luis Saenz,
Saenz, Attorney
Attorney
E. Luis
Burke,
Williams&&Sorensen
Sorensen
Burke, Williams
450 Sansome
Sansome Street,
Street, Suite
Suite 1200
1200
450
San
Francisco,
CA
94111-3320
San Francisco, CA 94111-3320
E. Romero,
Romero, Staff
Staff Attorney
Attorney
Ramon E.
Ramon
CaliforniaTeachers
Teachers Association
Association
California
P.O.
Box
921
P.O. Box 921
Burlingame, CA
CA 94011-0921
94011-0921
Burlingame,

declareunder
underpenalty
penaltyofofperjury
perjurythat
thatthe
theforegoing
foregoingisistrue
trueand
andcorrect
correctand
andthat
thatthis
this
I Ideclare
declarationwas
was executed
executed on
on November
November 23,
23, 2004,
2004, at
at Sacramento,
Sacramento, California.
California.
declaration
Stewart
Teresa
Teresa M.
M. Stewart
(Type or
or print
printname)
name)
(Type

(Signature)

